

Expression, Storage and Administration of Expressed Breast Milk Guidelines for hospital

Policy Reference:	Date of Issue: January 2017
Prepared by:	Date of Last Review: March 2024
Karen Mackay, Infant Feeding Advisor	Date of Next Review: March 2026
Lead Reviewer: Karen Mackay, Infant Feeding Advisor	Version: 3
Authorised by:	Date:
EQIA:	Date EQIA:

Distribution: • Executive Direct • All paediatric Me • All GPs • Clinical Directors • General Manage • Assistant General • CHP Lead Nurse	edical Staff and sers al Managers			
 Hospital Midwive Community Midwive Health Visitors Public Health Pr Nursery Nurses Children's Ward 	es wives	Jers		
CD ROM	Email 🗸	Paper ✓	Intranet √	

Warning - document uncontrolled when printed	
Version 3	Date of Issue: January 2017
Page 1	Date of Last Review: March 2024 Date of Next Review: March 2026

Data Protection Statement

NHS Highland is committed to ensuring all current data protection legislation is complied with when processing data that is classified within the legislation as personal data or special category personal data.

Good data protection practice is embedded in the culture of NHS Highland with all staff required to complete mandatory data protection training in order to understand their data protection responsibilities. All staff are expected to follow the NHS policies, processes and guidelines which have been designed to ensure the confidentiality, integrity and availability of data is assured whenever personal data is handled or processed.

The NHS Highland fair processing notice contains full detail of how and why we process personal data and can be found by clicking on the following link to the 'Your Rights' section of the NHS Highland internet site. http://www.nhshighland.scot.nhs.uk/Pages/YourRights.aspx

Warning - document uncontrolled when printed	
Version 3	Date of Issue: January 2017
Page 2	Date of Last Review: March 2024 Date of Next Review: March 2026

Contents

		Page no
	Foreword	4
	Equality and Diversity	4
1.	Aims and Objectives	5
2.	Proactive management of a woman required to Express Breast Milk	6
3.	Safety Issues with regards to Expressed Breast Milk within the Hospital Environment	7
4.	Identification and Labelling of Expressed Breast Milk	7
5.	Safe Storage of Expressed Breast Milk while in hospital.	8
6.	Preparation of Expressed Breast Milk	8
7.	Safe administration of Expressed Breast Milk	9
8.	Action to be taken if a baby is administered another mother's breast milk	9
9.	Alternative feeding methods	11
	Appendix 1 – Assessment of breastmilk expression	14

Warning - document uncontrolled when printed	
Version 3	Date of Issue: January 2017
Page 3	Date of Last Review: March 2024 Date of Next Review: March 2026

Foreword

NHS Highland is committed to promoting breastfeeding as the healthiest way for a mother to feed her baby. The important health benefits of breastfeeding are now known to exist for both mother and baby. NHS Highland will support the physiological and psychological function required to establish this natural maternal infant process.

Mothers who are unable to breastfeed their babies effectively during a hospital admission whether in the maternity unit, NNU or children's ward require research based information and skilled support on expressing to achieve and maintain adequate lactation. This also includes any mothers who are admitted to acute general services within our hospitals.

Within the hospital environment, the safe handling, preparation and storage of expressed breast milk (EBM) is essential in ensuring any potential health risks are minimised for both the mum and baby.

This guidance document will provide guidance for staff who are caring for a mother who is unable to breastfeed due to clinical factors or separation from her baby. It will support staff to optimise the volume of EBM a mum can produce and ensure handling, storage and administration of EBM are optimal to ensure safety at all times.

EBM means any milk that has been expressed from a mother's breast either by hand or by pump.

Equality and Diversity

NHS Highland ensures that the individual needs of mothers and their babies are given due consideration. In order to understand individual need, staff need to be aware of the impact of any barriers in how we provide services.

Staff are advised to:

- Check whether mothers require any kind of communication support including an interpreter to ensure that they understand any decisions being made.
- Ensure that they are aware of any concerns a mother may have about coping with breastfeeding and any decisions made.
- Ensure that any mother who has a disability that may require individualised planning re breastfeeding practice is appropriately supported.
- Ensure that gender-inclusive terms are used should parent(s) prefer this terminology. Suggested terms in breastfeeding and human lactation (Bartek et al, 2021) are useful and are suitable substitutes when gender-inclusive language is appropriate.

Warning - document uncontrolled when printed	
Version 3	Date of Issue: January 2017
Page 4	Date of Last Review: March 2024 Date of Next Review: March 2026

Traditional terms	Gender-inclusive terms
Mother, father, birth	Parent, gestational parent;
mother	combinations may be used for
	clarity, such as "mothers and
	gestational parents"
She, her, hers, he him, his	They/them (if gender not specified)
Breast	Mammary gland
Breastfeeding	Breastfeeding, chestfeeding,
	lactating, expressing, pumping,
	human milk feeding
Breastmilk	Milk, human milk, mother's own
	milk, parent's milk, father's milk
Breastfeeding mother or	Lactating parent, lactating person,
nursing mother	combinations may be used for
	clarity, such as "breastfeeding
	mothers and lactating parents"
Born male/female (as	Noted as male/female at birth or
applied to people who	recorded as male/female at birth or
identify as anything but	assigned male/female at birth.
cisgender)	

1. Aims and Objectives

- To ensure all maternity, neonatal and children's ward staff midwifery and nursing are able to offer research-based advice and support to ensure optimal expressing practices.
- To ensure all maternity, neonatal and children's ward staff midwifery and nursing are aware of this local guidance document and can safely handle and store EBM.
- To ensure all maternity, neonatal and children's ward staff midwifery and nursing are aware of the risks associated with unsafe storage, handling and preparation of EBM.
- To ensure all health professionals are confident to encourage and teach breastfeeding mothers how to express their breast milk (via hand or pump) if their babies are unable to feed effectively. Thus, ensuring that all attempts are made to provide breast milk for babies requiring supplementation. This will help reduce the unnecessary use of formula and ensure adequate breast milk supply for future lactation.
- To ensure all maternity, neonatal and children's ward staff midwifery and nursing are aware of current documentation in relation to EBM and can use this effectively.
- To ensure any mother who is breastfeeding and who is admitted to acute general services is offered support to maintain lactation during her hospital admission.

Warning - document uncontrolled when printed	
Version 3	Date of Issue: January 2017
Page 5	Date of Last Review: March 2024 Date of Next Review: March 2026

2. Proactive management of a woman required to Express Breast Milk

A maternal condition, separation from baby or a baby unable to effectively attach at the breast are all common reasons why expressing breast milk is recommended in hospital. <u>Without</u> the stimulation at the breast and the associated hormonal release, lactogenesis, will be inhibited leading to a reducing breast milk supply and finally cessation.

- Following delivery all mothers who are separated from their babies should have an informed discussion on the benefits of expressing breast milk for premature or sick babies
- All mothers who wish to breastfeed or express should be offered to EBM as soon as possible following delivery.
- This should be by hand in the first instance for at least the first 24 hours unless the baby is premature where pumping via an electric double pump has shown some benefit over hand expressing.
- Hand expressing should always be encouraged after using an electrical pump to stimulate a good hormonal response.
- A good time to switch from hand expression to using an electric pump is when the yield from each hand expression is approximately 7mls.
- As the mother is able, she should be offered the opportunity to EBM in the NNU either beside the cot or in the feeding room within the NNU.
- Completion of the Expressing Checklist on Badgernet should be encouraged for all mums who are expressing and be completed on day 1 and four times within the first two weeks.

xpressing Assessment			h
	07 Sep 22 💌 at 14:13 Postnatal 1week, 5days		
Freqency of Expression			
Timings of Expression			
Stimulating Milk Ejection		9	
Hand Expression		0	1
Using a Breast Pump		•	
BreastCondition]	
Milk Flow]	
Milk Volumes		•	
Information and Support Provided			

• The use of the expressing checklist should be encouraged for babies admitted to the children's ward and kept in the baby's notes, Appendix 1.

Warning - document uncontrolled when printed	
Version 3	Date of Issue: January 2017
Page 6	Date of Last Review: March 2024 Date of Next Review: March 2026

- Following admission to the children's ward mothers should be offered to EBM if their baby is nil by mouth, sick or unable to effectively attach to the breast – this should be documented clearly in the baby's notes.
- Expressing should be encouraged at least 8 times in 24 hours (and if possible 10 times).
- Try to encourage at least one expressing session during the night.
- Timings should work around the mother's lifestyle with no strict pumping regimes commenced or advised– expressing should fit around the mother's lifestyle as long as she does not leave more than 6 hours between pumping as evidence suggests that this can reduce the fat content.
- Women should not be advised how long they should pump but should be encouraged to observe volumes yielded and stop expressing when flow slows and stops.
- Double pumping is recommended for any mum who has a problem with supply, a baby in the NNU or who is planning expressing long term.
- Volumes should be charted to observe an increase gradually each 24 hours the optimal volume for a mum who is fully EBM at 14 days is 750mls.
- Use of an expressing log should be encouraged for use by women who are EBM long term. The expressing log is available from the NNU.

3. Safety Issues with regards to Expressed Breast Milk within the Hospital Environment

 Strict hand hygiene should be encouraged for everyone involved in the handling and storage of expressed breast milk; this will include mothers/parents.

Adherence to local infection control manual:

http://intranet.nhsh.scot.nhs.uk/PoliciesLibrary/Documents/National%20Infecti on%20Prevention%20and%20Control%20Manual.pdf

- All expressing equipment should be for single patient use.
- All mothers will be:
 - Given verbal instructions and a demonstration on how to use the expressing equipment following appropriate manufacturer's instructions.
 - Given information on how to label and store EBM safely.
 - Given information on how to clean and sterilise EBM equipment using cold water sterilisation.
 - Given information on how to obtain their EBM from fridge/freezer from a member of staff.
 - Given information on how to verify that they have been provided with the correct EBM from the ward staff member.
 - Given information on how to clean surfaces of breast pump with a detergent wipe after and before use.

Warning - document uncontrolled when printed	
Version 3	Date of Issue: January 2017
Page 7	Date of Last Review: March 2024 Date of Next Review: March 2026

4. Identification and Labelling of Expressed Breast Milk

- All mothers who express should be shown how to correctly label expressed breast milk before commencement of expressing.
- All mothers should be provided with labels to enable them to do this safely.
- Labels should be completed by the mother/parent given appropriate assistance by staff if required.
- Labels should contain the following information:
 - o Baby name.
 - Baby CHI.
 - Date expressed.
 - Time expressed.
 - Date and time defrosted.
- Labels will be checked by ward staff to ensure correct labelling prior to placing in fridge or freezer.
- Fridges for storage of EBM are located in the NNU, postnatal wards and the children's ward at Raigmore and in the Henderson Wing at Caithness General Hospital. A freezer for storage of EBM is also available in postnatal ward 10 in in Raigmore Hospital.

5. Safe Storage of Expressed Breast Milk while in hospital

- EBM should be stored in a fridge/freezer in clinical areas which is exclusively for this purpose.
- **Only** staff should have access to the fridge or freezer to reduce potential infection risk or misuse.
- EBM should be stored under 4°C for no more than 24 48 hours.
- Any EBM which is stored in the fridge and will not be used within 48 hours should be frozen.
- EBM stored in the fridge should **NEVER** be placed in the door of the fridge.
- Any EBM within the fridge which is unlabelled, stored in the fridge door, older than 48 hours or from a mother who has gone home should be discarded immediately.
- EBM should be stored in the freezer at -20°C for no more than 3 months in the hospital environment or 6 months in a domestic freezer in a home.
- Temperatures in both fridge and freezer should be checked twice daily and temperatures documented in the ward record.
- Any deviation from optimal temperatures will be reported immediately to the nurse/midwife in charge and appropriate action taken.
- Gloves should be used at all times when handling EBM.

Warning - document uncontrolled when printed						
Version 3 Date of Issue: January 2017						
Page 8	Date of Last Review: March 2024 Date of Next Review: March 2026					

6. Preparation of Expressed Breast Milk

- EBM should be used in chronological order with the older used first.
- If baby is in the NNU and at risk of infection then use of newer milk first is advisable to ensure immunological protection from current milk production.
- If milk is stored at room temperature within the hospital this should be used within 2 hours of expressing or should be placed in the fridge if not.
- If milk is stored in the fridge and it is obvious that the milk will not be used within 24 48 hours it should be placed in the freezer.
- Ideally frozen breast milk should be defrosted in a fridge gradually and used within 24 hours clear documentation of time defrosting commenced should be placed on the label on the bottle.
- Defrosted frozen EBM cannot be replaced in a fridge or freezer once defrosted.
- Microwave ovens should NOT be used for defrosting.
- Within the NNU and the postnatal wards the CALESCA warming thawing devices are used to defrost frozen EBM. They should be used in accordance with the manufacturer's instructions which are housed with the devises.
- If EBM is taken out of the fridge the maximum time that it can be left at room temperature without consumption is 2 hours this milk should not be replaced in fridge or frozen once taken out.
- **<u>NEVER</u>** use water to defrost or warm EBM in hospital due to the risk of pseudomonas contamination.

7. Safe administration of Expressed Breast Milk

- No non-staff member i.e. parents or visitors will have access to the fridge or freezer in clinical areas.
- Mothers/ parents will request EBM from a staff member as required.
- Staff member will visually check identification label on EBM with either a colleague or the mother/parent. It is **vital** that the label is checked by 2 adults.

 When EBM is identified as correct the small sticky label will be removed from the EBM bottle and either placed in the baby's notes in the maternity unit, the feeding chart in the children's ward or the HDU/ care chart in the NNU.

- The small sticky label will be signed by the 2 adults who visually checked the identification label as correct.
- Once the EBM has been confirmed as correct then it can be administered to the baby.
- Date, time and method of administration should be documented in the appropriate notes.

Baby name	EBM checked
Baby CHI	by
Date expressed	
Time expressed	
Date and time defrosted	

Warning - document uncontrolled when printed					
Version 3 Date of Issue: January 2017					
Page 9	Date of Last Review: March 2024 Date of Next Review: March 2026				

8. Action to be taken if a baby is administered another mother's breast milk

- If the error is discovered early, the administered EBM should be aspirated from the stomach
- The nurse in charge and the attending/on call Consultant Neonatologist/Paediatrician should be informed.
- A Datix report should be completed.
- Both the donor mother and the mother/parents of the recipient baby must be informed of the incident by the Consultant, but should not be told each other's names.
- Details or the error, and the discussion with parent/parents should be documented in the baby's casenotes.

The major parental concern usually relates to possible transmission of infection. In practice the risk of infection is extremely low. Only HIV, CMV, and HTLV (Human T-cell lymphotropic virus) viruses are known to transmit via breast milk (and HTLV is extremely uncommon in our population). No mother who is known to be HIV infected will be expressing and storing milk in the neonatal unit, and there is only a tiny chance that the mother will have seroconverted since she was screened on her booking bloods. CMV commonly transmits via breast milk, although the act of freezing EBM destroys many of the viral particles, which will significantly reduce the risk of infection. Should CMV be contracted in this way, it may cause acute infection, but is very unlikely to have any long term detrimental effects (in contrast to prenatal infection). Infants contracting CMV postnatally are not offered any antiviral medication (except in the rare instance of a significant systemic infection).

The consultant will speak to the parents and apologise for the error in an appropriate manner. The parents should be reassured of the very low risk of infection using the information above. This information may include reassurance that the donor of the incorrect milk was known to be HIV negative at the start of the pregnancy although it is important that the name of the donor is not revealed. This reassurance and apology may be all that the recipient's parents require.

N.B. This reflects the advice given by the Centre for Disease control (CDC) in the US

Some parents may insist on further reassurance including further virological testing of the donor, (although this will require the consent of the donor).

If the parents insist that they wish further reassurance we would seek consent from the donor to repeat their HIV serology. If, in the unlikely event that this test proved positive there should be consultation with the Infectious diseases team regarding appropriate post-exposure prophylaxis.

We would not routinely offer testing for CMV unless the recipient showed signs or symptoms of acute CMV infection (Note that the incubation period for CMV is 28-60 days).

Warning - document uncontrolled when printed					
Version 3 Date of Issue: January 2017					
Page 10	Date of Last Review: March 2024 Date of Next Review: March 2026				

N.B. If a postnatal infection with CMV were to occur it is more likely that the infection would have originated from the baby's own mother rather than from a small aliquot of donor milk

We would not routinely test for other infections as they are not reported to transmit via breast milk

Above guidance is taken from the 2019 West of Scotland Expresses Breast Milk guideline.

9. Alternative feeding methods

Oro/naso-gastric tubes

- Very pre-term babies will initially need tube feeding to enable early gut priming, gut mobility and passage of meconium.
- Naso-gastric tubes may cause nasal obstruction but allow commencement of oral feeding, while oro-gastric tubes have less effect on respiratory system but can restrict tongue movement to aid sucking during oral feeding.
- Long term tube feeding can lead to oral tactile hypersensitivity and may dampen oral reflexes.
- The use of non-nutritive sucking (sucking a dummy) during tube feeds may help to accelerate the organisation and efficiency of sucking and may build an association of sucking and satiation. Dummies should not be used when breastfeeding is established.

Cup feeding

• Appropriate training is encouraged.

• Cup feeding may help to improve preterm oral skills and is an appropriate method for a baby who is showing signs of wanting to suck.

- Cup feeding has certain advantages for the baby over using syringes and tubes.
- Gives the baby valuable experience of taking food by mouth and the pleasure of taste.
- It stimulates baby's digestion.

• It allows baby to practise tongue movements which will help progress to breastfeeding.

• Cup feeding is particularly useful for the following babies:

Warning - document uncontrolled when printed						
Version 3 Date of Issue: January 2017						
Page 11	Date of Last Review: March 2024 Date of Next Review: March 2026					

- A preterm who is wide awake and restless between feeds.
- A preterm or sick baby who shows signs of wanting to lick or suck.
- A baby who is not satisfied by tube feeds and who is restless after them.
- A baby who is not yet able to feed directly from the breast or has only enough energy to satisfy part of his total nutritional needs at the breast.
- A term baby whose mother is ill after delivery.
- A baby who is lacking energy because of a cardiac or respiratory problem.
- A baby who cannot feed directly from the breast because of a neurological problem which interferes with sucking co-ordination.

Cup feeding has the following advantages over other feeding methods.

Allows the baby to control the amount and rate of the feed.	Does not need you to put something into the baby's mouth and may be less disruptive to breastfeeding than feeding with a bottle.
A baby has to be held when cup feeding.	Cup is easier to sterilise than a bottle.
Cup feeding is thought of as an interim clinical procedure rather than a normal feeding method – therefore carries less connotations that breastfeeding is a "failure".	

Bottle feeding

- In newborn babies swallowing interrupts breathing, tidal volume, minute ventilation, oxygen saturation and heart rate. In preterm babies the assessment of the suck/swallow/breathe pattern is essential when offering bottle feeds as preterm babies cannot override the reflex to suck. This may prevent them from taking a breath causing de-saturation, coughing or aspiration.
- Pacing the baby by removing the teat after short sucking bursts allows respiratory recovery in the pauses and supports immature sucking patterns.
- Fast flow teats should be avoided.
- Behavioural cues should be responded to in order for the feed to be responsive and to prevent negative experiences.
- A time limit of 30 minutes should be placed on a bottle feed since continuing after this time can be exhausting and will lead to calorific expenditure.

Warning - document uncontrolled when printed					
Version 3 Date of Issue: January 2017					
Page 12	Date of Last Review: March 2024 Date of Next Review: March 2026				

• Bottle feeding should only be considered for a breast fed baby when all other methods have not been successful or are contra-indicated for a clinical reason. If a baby is using a bottle when establishing breastfeeding it should not be offered routinely in this period.

Nipple shields

- Occasionally a nipple shield for a preterm or sick infant can be useful, especially when the baby is unable to generate sufficient suction pressure to retain the nipple in the mouth.
- Shields should always be checked during a pause phase in the suck/swallow pattern to ensure that there is milk in the shield.
- When the baby becomes older and stronger the mother should be encouraged to feed without a shield to promote more effective milk transfer.
- Mothers who use a nipple shield should be encouraged to express following a feed to improve milk drainage.
- Nipple shields are not recommended for mums who do not have sufficient milk supply or who are in the very early days of feeding prior to "milk coming in".

Breastfeeding supplementer

- These are designed to provide the baby with a steady flow of a supplementary feed while suckling at the breast. They also provide nipple and breast stimulation. They are useful for mums who have an insufficient milk supply and good to entice the baby to suck at the breast with a good suckling pattern to aid milk stimulation.
- They are extremely useful for babies with weak or disorganised suckling patterns and can avoid the potential for nipple/teat confusion. They are useful for allowing coaxing on the breast. Through effective attachment and suckling the baby is rewarded with a milk flow. Since tubing is soft and small the flow of milk is easily controlled.
- The only negative with this system appears to be that not all mothers will be keen due to the intrusive nature of attaching the tubing and potential messiness of use.
- Please seek specialist advice and support prior to using this method.

Syringe feeding

• It is vital that only a small syringe is used – no more than a 5ml syringe to ensure that small boluses are given to the baby. Small squirts should be administered to the baby waiting for a swallow prior to continuing. Allowing

Warning - document uncontrolled when printed					
Version 3 Date of Issue: January 2017					
Page 13	Date of Last Review: March 2024 Date of Next Review: March 2026				

the baby to suck from the syringe continually is contra-indicated and could cause aspiration.

Warning - document uncontrolled when printed				
Version 3	Date of Issue: January 2017			
Page 14	Date of Last Review: March 2024 Date of Next Review: March 2026			

Appendix 1

Warning - document uncontrolled when printed				
Version 3	Date of Issue: January 2017			
Page 15	Date of Last Review: March 2024 Date of Next Review: March 2026			



Assessment of breastmilk expression



For sick and preterm babies the importance of breastmilk cannot be overestimated, supporting growth and providing protection from infection. In particular, evidence suggests that the use of breastmilk decreases the incidence and severity of the life threatening disease necrotising entercolitis. By providing her breastmilk a mother can be assured that she is uniquely contributing to the wellbeing and development of her baby. However, expressing breastmilk over a long period of time is extremely demanding and if a mother is to succeed she needs the support from those involved with caring for her and her baby.

The Baby Friendly Initiative recommends that a formal review is carried out at least once within the first 12 hours following delivery to support early expressing and **at least four times within the first two weeks** to ensure that mothers are expressing effectively and to address any issues or concerns they may have. Early (within the first 4-6 hours), frequent (at least eight times in 24 hours including once at night) and effective (combining hand and pump expression) expressing is crucial to ensuring a mother is able to maximise her milk production so that she can maintain her supply for as long as she wishes. With the correct support to express, a mother can aim to achieve an average milk volume of approximately 750–900ml in 24 hours at day 14.

Delays in starting to express or any reduction in the frequency or effectiveness of expression will compromise her long term supply. Early detection and correction of problems will help her maintain confidence in her ability to produce milk for her baby.

Tips to help mothers succeed

- Hand expression is a good technique for obtaining small volumes of colostrum.
- · Breast massage and relaxation techniques help to get her milk flowing.
- Expressing close to her baby or at least having a photo or piece of baby's clothing will help milk production and flow.
- Encourage her to ask for regular skin to skin contact or, where this is not possible, to interact and undertake care giving for her baby as this boosts milk-producing hormones.
- When using a pump ensure she is taught the correct technique and always check the pump shield to ensure it is the correct one.
- · Encourage double pumping as this saves time and may contribute to being able to express long term
- Help her make a plan for expressing and consider using an expressing log to help she does not have to stick to a strict 3-4 hourly routine but help her to avoid long gaps (four-hourly in the day and six-hourly at night) between expressions.
- · Emphasise the importance of the night-time expression as this is when hormone levels are highest and long term expressing most likely to succeed.
- Although it is expected that milk volumes increase daily in first two weeks, it is important that mothers don't feel pressurised to obtain a 'specific' amount. Refer for specialist support if you have concerns about milk volumes.
- Keep her updated on baby's progress and encourage her to be with her baby as much as possible as this will help alleviate anxiety.
- Value her contribution and let her know how important it is for her baby.

Warning - document uncontrolled when printed				
Version 3	Date of Issue: January 2017			
Page 16	Date of Last Review: March 2024 Date of Next Review: March 2026			

Expressing assessment form

If any responses in the right hand column are ticked refer to specialist practitioner. Any additional concerns should be followed up as needed. Please date and sign when you have completed the assessments.

Mother's name:	's name: Baby's name: Date of assessmer		ent:	Birth weight:						
	Date of birth:				Gestation:					
What to observe/ask about	Answer indicating effective expressing	1	~	~	1	Answer suggestive of a problem	*	*	~	1
Frequency of expression	At least 8 times in 24 hours including once during the night.					Fewer than 8 times. Leaving out the night expression.				
Timings of expressions	Timings work around her lifestyle with no gaps of longer than 4 hours (daytime) and 6 hours (night time)					Frequent long gaps between expressions. Difficulty 'fitting in' 8 expressions in 24 hours.				
Stimulating milk ejection	Uses breast massage, relaxation, skin contact and/or being close to baby. Photos or items of baby clothing to help stimulate oxytocin.					Difficulty eliciting a milk ejection reflex. Stressed and anxious.				
*Hand expression	*Confident with technique. Appropriate leaflet/DVD provided.					*Poor technique observed. Mother not confident.				
Using a breast pump	Access to electric pump. Effective technique including suction settings, correct breast shield fit. Switching breasts (or double pumping) to ensure good breast drainage. Uses massage and/or breast compression to increase flow.					Concern about technique. Suction setting too high/low, restricting expression length, breast shield too small/large.				
Breast condition	Mother reports breast fullness prior to expression which softens following expression. No red areas or nipple trauma.					Breasts hard and painful to touch. Evidence of friction or trauma to nipple.				
Milk flow	Good milk flow. Breasts feel soft after expression.					Milk flow delayed and slow. Breasts remain full after expression.				
Mill volumes	Gradual increases in 24 hr volume at each assessment.					Milk volumes slow to increase or are decreasing at each assessment.				

Hand expression may not need to be reviewed every time





Warning - document uncontrolled when printed		
Version 3	Date of Issue: January 2017	
Page 17	Date of Last Review: March 2024 Date of Next Review: March 2026	

Date	Information/support provided	Signature

UNICEF UK Baby Friendly Initiative 2013





Version 3	Date of Issue: January 2017
Page 18	Date of Last Review: March 2024 Date of Next Review: March 2026